1953

# Vern B. Millard v. Jesse H. Parry et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The plaintiff, Vern B. Millard, appeals from a portion of the judgment and decree entered in the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, April 23, 1953 (R. 76-81).

The action by plaintiff as general contractor was for foreclosure of a lien filed to secure payment of an alleged unpaid balance of \$24,752.91, for construction of the Parry Apart-

ments, which cost \$111,073.34 (R. 5, Exhibit P-9). The Honorable Ray Van Cott, Jr., trial judge, allowed a total of only \$92,658.30, on the theory that plaintiff was bound by a written contract for \$82,000.00 for complete construction except for items chargeable as extras, and that plaintiff did not rely on the statements of the architect in reducing his bid to \$82,000.00. The trial court not only gave defendants credit for the \$87,139.81 paid in the aggregate to plaintiff and various materialmen and subcontractors, but the court allowed defendants Jesse H. Parry and Elsie H. Parry credit for two items which the architect and agent for Mr. and Mrs. Parry instructed the plaintiff to exclude from the bid, the cost of a sewer line in the amount of \$1,215.32 not even shown on the drawings, and the difference of \$400.00 in cost of brick.

By stipulation entered into *after* the trial to enable defendants Parry to "stop the running of interest," said defendants paid \$1,963.48 to defendants Strand Electric Service Company, including \$134.25 interest and \$39.20 attorney fees and costs to satisfy said lien claimant; \$436.86 to defendant Otto Drews including \$38.36 interest and costs; and \$1,938.13 to John Lee Floor Coverings for materials and work, including \$161.77 interest and \$14.20 costs (R. 54-55). The court then credited those payments, including all of the interest and costs except \$42.75 against the principal amount which the court found to have been due and owing from defendants Parry to plaintiff, but *denied* plaintiff any interest on the amount found due from the Parrys although no payment was made until after the trial, so that plaintiff was charged with both interest and costs on indebtedness found due and owing from the

Parrys for construction, to arrive at a net balance of \$435.30 in favor of Jesse H. Parry against the plaintiff (R. 74-75). The trial court also assessed costs against the plaintiff, and denied plaintiff all costs and attorney fees, although the court charged plaintiff with the costs and attorney fees of other lien claimants who were not paid by reason of the failure of defendants Parry to pay.

The portions of the judgment and decree appealed from on May 22, 1953, (R. 80-81) relate to: (a) Denial of recovery by plaintiff of \$18,414.04 in costs of construction resulting from the acts, omissions and conduct of Jesse H. Parry and Elsie H. Parry as owners, and their architect. (b) Allowance of credit to defendant Jesse H. Parry in the amount of \$1,215.32 for construction of sewer, and \$400.00 for savings in cost of brick, notwithstanding the architect for said defendants who controlled the bidding directed the plaintiff to exclude those items in preparation of bids. (c) Disallowance of items of cost in excess of the amounts the architect instructed plaintiff to allow, such as allowance for heating; and disallowance of costs where architect instructed plaintiff not to figure any costs. (d) Denial of recovery against defendants Parry for lien costs, attorney fees and interest. (e) Charging plaintiff the interest, costs and attorney fees paid by defendants to lien claimants after trial, which items were incurred by reason of the wilful failure of defendants Parry to pay when demand was made for payment December 28, 1951, and defendants Parry were authorized to pay either jointly to subcontractors, and plaintiff or directly to subcontractors. (f) Denial to plaintiffs of his costs, notwithstanding defendants Parry refused to

pay event the amount the court found to be owing to them until after the trial. (g) The provisions of the decree ordering plaintiff to release the lien, when plaintiff was only partially paid. Plaintiff does not appeal from the portion of the judgment which dismisses the counterclaim of defendant Jesse H. Parry, but plaintiff appeals from inconsistent provisions of the judgment, in addition to portions of the judgment relating to items hereinabove enumerated.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

### *(a) Events prior to signing of contract.*

Defendant and respondent Jesse H. Parry is a restaurant operator (R. 606). He and his wife, Elsie H. Parry, were and are the owners of real estate at 160 South 13th East in Salt Lake City, on which there was situated an apartment house. Said defendants also owned another apartment house on adjoining property to the south (R. 606). By telephone appointment Mr. Parry met the plaintiff and appellant, Vern B. Millard, on the property during the first part of November, 1950. Mr. Millard was and is a general contractor. At the time Mr. Parry met him, Mr. Parry had some plans which he had procured from Hyland Lumber Company similar to plans of a building being constructed by Mr. Millard for Mr. and Mrs. Flandro at Fourth Avenue and C Street (Exhibit 34). Mr. Parry wanted to build an apartment house to the rear of the existing structure at 160 South 13th East Street. Mr. Millard told Mr. Parry that those plans were not suitable for the construction site, and Mr. Millard suggested that Mr. Parry consult an architect (R. 607-608).



About December 1, 1950, Mr. Parry employed Mr. LeRoy W. Johnson as his architect (R. 609, 721). Exhibit 35 is a site plan prepared by the architect for an 11 unit apartment at the rear of said tract of land, dated December 2, 1950 (R. 609). They discussed various apartment houses, including the Lindsay apartments, which were then being constructed by Mr. Millard at a cost of \$78,500.00 (R. 392-393, 724-726). The yellow sheets of Exhibit D-17 were the cost figures worked out between Mr. Parry and the architect on December 14, 1950; but the white sheet, (which shows the architects's estimate of \$81,879.00, without any allowance for taxes, insurance, or any overhead costs of the general contractor or any allowance for the services of the general contractor), was presented to Mr. Parry by the architect sometime before the contract was signed (R. 736-738).

During a period of two or three weeks after Mr. Parry hired the architect, he said he had no discussion with Mr. Millard (R. 722). Mr. Parry had a discussion with Mr. Millard about what could be done to improve the appearance of the existing structure at 160 South 13th East Street. Mr. Millard told him he thought it would be more economical to build a new structure in front, rather than to remodel the old building, in addition to building an apartment house in the rear. Mr. Parry then entered into discussion with Mr. Johnson, his architect, about building a 6 unit apartment in front of the old structure. Mr. Parry said he did not have sufficient finances without mortgaging the front property, and that he had cash resources of about \$59,000.00 (R. 724-726).

Before there was any request to bid, Mr. and Mrs. Parry

had a discussion with their architect in December, 1950, about having certain items taken care of in advance, including windows, fixtures, refrigerators and ranges. Mr. Parry said he wanted materials as far as possible, at their finger tips before signing a contract (R. 722). At that time he expressed the fear that due to the Korean war, there was a possibility that the government might curtail or stop the type of construction contemplated, and Mr. Parry felt it would be advisable to purchase items which might become critical or become impossible to obtain, as he was afraid there would be a government freeze order (R. 398, 722). The Pella windows were decided on long before there was any contract (R. 733).

Mr. and Mrs. Parry went to Ludlow Plumbing Company late in December or early in January to select types of fixtures and colors for bathrooms. They had no discussion with Mr. Millard about it (R. 723, 738-739). Mr. Johnson, the architect, testified that Exhibit P-4, a bid on plumbing from Grant E. Barnes, addressed to Mr. and Mrs. Parry dated January 8, 1951, was obtained by him for the Parrys. Said bid expressly states: "This does not include sewer or water meter service." The said bid was in the amount of \$5,567.07 (R. 336-337). With respect to said plumbing bid, the same was incorporated into the architects's estimate of costs, part of Exhibit 17, prior to the date the contract was signed on January 29, 1951, "Plumbing complete. Bid by Barnes & Chase \$5567.00." Mr. Parry testified that he did not remember Mr. Johnson telling him that he had obtained a proposal from Grant E. Barnes; but that Mr. Johnson "suggested that he had talked to a man by the name of Barnes, and that the

fixtures would be bought through the Ludlow Plumbing through Mr. Barnes and we would have to select colors and that is the first time we ever seen Mr. Barnes" (R. 617-618). Mr. and Mrs. Parry went to the Ludlow Plumbing Company about the middle of January to pick out types and colors of fixtures, and they met Mr. Barnes there, the man that was going to do the plumbing (R. 758-759). Ranges, refrigerators, and windows were also purchased by Mr. and Mrs. Parry. *Thus, before there was any request for bids, the owners were procuring materials and fixtures for the construction job, items usually purchased by the general contractor.* Mr. Millard had nothing to do with the ordering of windows, plumbing fixtures, ranges, refrigerators (R. 396-397). Mrs. Elsie H. Parry testified that it was around the first part of January 1951 when she and her husband went to Ludlow Plumbing Company to select types and colors of fixtures, and also when they selected ranges, refrigerators, etc. (R. 785-786).

Mr. Parry testified that he hired the architect for his skill and know-how with respect to the type of equipment and other things which should go into the construction project, and that Mr. Johnson was hired to take care of the details of the job (R. 732). Mr. Parry said he told Mr. Johnson that it was up to Mr. Johnson to work out these problems for him (R. 733). Mr. Parry also said he had given Mr. Johnson a big retainer, and that Mr. Johnson was working for him (R. 613-614). On various matters he said he told Mr. Johnson that he would leave certain matters to his judgment (R. 733). He said he wanted to be sure that the heating systems would be adequate, and that working out the heating arrangement

was left to the architect, as that is what he was hired for (R. 732, 744). Mr. Parry also testified that he expected Mr. Millard to deal with the architect (R. 770).

Mr. Miles E. Miller, architect called to testify for defendants, *testified that the architect gives the instructions as to how to bid, and that contractors are supposed to follow the directions of the architect in bidding.* He further testified that the plaintiff, Mr. Millard, has always followed the instructions of the architect, in his experience (R. 853-855, 861). Mr. Arthur D. Taylor, a building expediter, called as a witness for defendants, testified that the architect governs the bidding (R. 905), and in the specifications submitted to contractors there is generally a sheet relating to instructions to bidders (R. 904). Such a sheet was not embodied in the documents of this case (R. 905).

When Mr. Parry obtained a copy of plans and specifications on the 11 unit apartments in January 1951, he tried to get a figure from Ellis Barker, but he was too busy (R. 766). When he received them he was not aware that sheets 37, 38 and 39 had been deleted from the specifications (R. 739-740).

Mr. Vern B. Millard, the plaintiff, was presented with a set of plans and specifications about January 20, 1951, Exhibits P-2 and P-3. Mr. Johnson, the architect, said he would have to furnish details later as the plans were incomplete because of lack of time, as the Parrys were anxious to go ahead, and time was very important to them. He said also that the Parrys had ordered ranges, refrigerators, and windows, and that the Parrys wanted to engage the men they

had contracted with, particularly the plumber. He further stated that the specifications covered the over-all picture (R. 137-140). The architect testified that he explained to Mr. and Mrs. Parry that the plans were relatively incomplete, but the Parrys were fearful of a government freeze order which would adversely affect this type of construction, so they proceeded on plans and specifications which had not been in a final sense coordinated. Mr. Johnson said he told Mr. Millard that the first contract was to cover the 11 unit apartments, and other portions of the project including a 6 unit structure to the east, as well as sewer and water lines, would come under a later contract. Exhibit P-16, the master plot plan which defendants produced upon demand, shows the sewer system from a point 5 feet outside the house out to the street, as a part of construction project No. 2. Mr. Johnson said he instructed Mr. Millard to figure on stubbing both sewer and water lines 5 feet outside the building, as both systems would be included in the second or 6 unit project. Mr. Millard was instructed to prepare his bid on that basis. He was also told to allow \$7,800 to \$8,000 for heating, as the system had not been completely worked out (R. 337-339). Mr. Millard was also told by the architect that the Pella window unit, with which Mr. Millard was unfamiliar, would be installed by the brick masons, and that he should not figure any carpenter labor for such installations (R. 141-148). When Mr. Millard asked whether the masonry walls should continue 13 inches in thickness to the roof, Mr. Johnson told him not to figure walls 13 inches at the top floor, as that was not necessary, and would take space from the apartment (R. 343). Mr. Millard excluded from his bid the

items the architect told him to delete, and nothing was allowed in his figures for anything the architect told him to omit (R. 148-149). Mr. Millard first submitted a bid for \$90,000.00 (R. 141).

When plaintiff submitted his bid, the architect showed him Exhibit P-4, which is the plumbing bid dated January 8, 1951, addressed to defendants Parry, for \$5,567.07, which specifies: "This does not include sewer or water meter service." Mr. Johnson told Mr. Millard that "This is a legitimate bid. I know this plumber. You can use it in your bid." In going over the items as to what should be excluded, Mr. Millard then submitted a bid for \$85,212.00 (R. 142). He relied on the items which Mr. Johnson told him to use in his figures, including the plumbing bid, heating, windows, brick work, and fixtures. Mr. Johnson told Mr. Millard that the Parrys were going ahead with the 6 unit apartment and would spend \$45,000.00 and Mr. Parry asked Mr. Millard to figure costs to include that price. Mr. Johnson, the architect, said that Mr. Parry would go ahead with both if Mr. Millard would reduce his bid on the 11 unit structure to \$82,000.00 (R. 142-143, 146-152). Mr. Millard was told that by building both together there would be more efficient operation with men and equipment working so close together. That is why Mr. Millard reduced his figure to \$82,000.00.

When Exhibit P-6, the contract, was presented for signature, Mr. Millard asked who would supervise the job. Mr. Johnson assured him that he would supervise and that no one else would be permitted to interfere in any respect, and that the owners would not have anything to do with super-

vision. Mr. Millard asked whether there would be any undue interference by the owners at the job site, as Mr. and Mrs. Parry were operating two existing apartment houses, and he asked if his workmen would be free to proceed with work by looking directly to the architect for instructions and any clarifications of drawings and specifications. This was important to Mr. Millard because when an owner comes on a job and talks to his men, or makes changes, or interferes in any way, it slows down the job and makes it more costly. Mr. Millard relied also on the assurances that the architect would be the supervisor, in signing the contract (R. 154-155, 344). There was no contradiction of the testimony of plaintiff that it is more economical for a contractor to have supervision of construction by an architect. Also, Mr. Miles E. Miller, witness for defendant, testified that when an architect becomes the supervisor, he is supposed to be impartial (R. 853).

Before the contract, Exhibits P-6 and D-7, were signed, dated January 29, 1951, there was a discussion at the office of the architect between the architect, Mr. Millard and Mr. Parry. Mr. Parry told Mr. Johnson to go ahead with the plans for the 6 unit apartments, and said Mr. Millard would build them in conjunction with the 11 unit apartments. He said he would spend \$45,000.00 for the 6 unit apartments, and asked Mr. Millard to figure costs to include that price. Mr. Parry stated that Mr. Millard should make money on the project, and by building both together there would be an efficient operation (R. 142-143, 146-152). Mr. Millard testified that he relied on the statements of both Mr. Parry and his architect in signing the contract.

*(b) Events from date of signing contract to date of termination of services of the architect as supervisor.*

Mr. Millard started construction of the 11 unit apartments on February 5, 1951. The architect went ahead with plans for the 6 unit apartment, Exhibit P-10. There was no delay in preparation of the plans in February, 1951. Mr. Parry said he did not have sufficient finances without mortgaging the front property (R. 725). The architect testified that some time in April Mr. Parry said the bank wanted a mortgage on the entire property, and he wanted to mortgage only the front of it, so he said he would make other financial arrangements. He said Mr. Millard could still count on proceeding with the 6 unit structure, but in the latter part of the same month he said he would have to hold off indefinitely the construction of the front unit, and he did not intend that Mr. Millard would be injured financially by the delay (R. 335-336).

Mr. Parry also testified that he told Mr. Millard and Mr. Johnson that he could not finance construction of the 6 unit apartment in front, without mortgaging it; and he told them he thought he could mortgage the front and leave the back portion of the property out of the mortgage (R. 725). While he testified that he was unable to make any financial arrangements to go ahead with the 6 unit apartment, and that he so notified Mr. Johnson in January 1951 (R. 764), he admitted that it was not inability to mortgage the property, but the fact that the bank wanted a mortgage on the entire property which he did not want to give, and that he said he would go elsewhere for the finance (R. 734).

Mr. Parry further testified that a newspaper reporter



came to him to get a cut which appeared in the Salt Lake Tribune, Sunday, February 18, 1951, (Exhibit P-21). He said that Mr. Johnson wanted that put in the paper (R. 735-736, 764). He admitted that he had the article in his possession since February 18, 1951. The article states: "Plans for \$125,000 in apartment construction . . . were announced Saturday by Jesse H. Parry . . . Plans are to add to the rear of the existing building a structure containing 11 two-bedroom units and another at the front housing six bachelor apartments. Both of the new additions will be three stories and of golden buff brick . . . Vern B. Millard has the contract. The front addition is to be started this summer and completed before winter. The rear unit . . . will cost approximately \$85,000. The front portion will cost \$40,000."

Mr. Parry also testified that "The only mistake I made, I didn't notify Mr. Johnson by letter to discontinue. He just continued on with his services which we offered to pay him at one time \$1,000.00 if he would quit his services and he wouldn't consider it for what he had done" (R. 763-764). Mr. Millard testified that it was about March, 1951 when Mr. Parry refused to go ahead with the 6 unit apartments because he was unwilling to mortgage the entire property (R. 188-189).

The electrical plans were not followed, but changed (R. 339). The heating system was also changed from the heat-pump system to a hot water boiler with individual heat coils and blowers for each individual apartment, which was approved by Mr. and Mrs. Parry. Mr. Millard had nothing to do with the selection of D. A. Olson & Company as heating

contractor. The architect handed to Mr. Millard the proposal from said company some weeks after the contract had been signed, and told Mr. Millard to go ahead with such proposal (R. 339-341). Mr. Parry said he did not notice the substitution of sheets in the specifications on heating (R. 740), and that he did not see the heating contract before Mr. Johnson told Mr. Millard to sign it (R. 743). Mr. Parry further stated that he left those matters to the architect and that was why he was hired (R. 744). The heating plans were not completed until some time after the job started (R. 732, 744).

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