1953

Vern B. Millard v. Jesse H. Parry et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE JUDGMENT AND DECREE CONTAINS CONTRADICTIONARY PROVISIONS, AND DISMISSAL OF THE COUNTERCLAIM PRECLUDED ENTRY OF A JUDGMENT AGAINST THE PLAINTIFF.

This action proceeded to trial in consolidation with case No. 96104 upon the theory that stipulation be made between all of counsel as to the claims of defendants Strand Electric Service Company, Otto Drews and John Lee Floor Covering in the consolidated case and that the amount of their claims would be admitted and that it would then be determined by the Court what part, if any of said claims, was chargeable to the plaintiff or the defendants.

This position is evidenced by statement in the record by defendant's counsel (R. 96):

"I am sure that my client feels that we do not wish any judgment going against the property and we want the liens released, so I believe satis-

factory judgment can be made which will obviate the necessity of rendering any findings as to the matter. I don't want a judgment entered on this matter until the entire matter is completed."

After the trial of this matter and on the 10th day of April, 1953 counsel for parties involved in these actions stipulated (R. 55):

"5. That as to the particular portions of said claims so paid with respect to which it shall finally be adjudged that plaintiff is liable, said defendants Jesse H. Parry and wife shall be entitled to credit in the above entitled cause as of the date payment of claims is made (which credit shall be in addition to the payment heretofore made to plaintiff and/or to materialmen or subcontractors).

* * * * *

7. That upon payment of said claims the actions and counterclaims of said claimants are to be dismissed with prejudice."

All of the above claims are included in the billing of plaintiff to defendants (Ex. P-9) bearing date of December 28, 1951. No further claims of Millard were made upon defendant Parry until trial when Exhibit P-14 in an additional sum of \$13,735.79 was made and a further claim made during the course of the trial in the amount of \$3,212.00 (R. 498):

"Q. Are you claiming that the item of \$3,212.00 is an additional charge by reason of not proceeding with the construction?

THE COURT: Which item?

Q. It isn't shown on here. It isn't shown as an extra. It is an item of damage that would come by failure to go ahead with this after getting him to go ahead with his figure.

A. I felt that I was damaged that much.

THE COURT: How much is it?

A. Thirty-Two Hundred Dollars and Twelve—I mean \$3,212.00."

Thus, the additional claims were made by plaintiff against Parry during trial and would have to be considered as a counter-claim to the counter-claim which the defendant had filed against plaintiff.

Therefore an examination of the record does disclose that the plaintiff made counter claims against the counter claim of the defendant Parry and the statement in the judgment of the Court is not in error.

Based upon the aforesaid statements and stipulations the Court tried this action item by item allowing certain credits to defendant Parry for payments as being items included in the contract of January 29, 1951 and allowing plaintiff other items for extras based upon the \$82,000.00 contract such that after defendant Parry paid the lien claimants \$4,338.47 there was an excess of payments credited to Parry in the sum of \$435.30 for which he was entitled to a judgment under the terms of the stipulation of April 10, 1952. (R. 54-55.)

Thus the provisions of the judgment are not contradictory nor void.

POINT II.

THE ORDER REQUIRING PLAINTIFF TO RELEASE HIS LIEN WAS CONTRARY TO LAW.

The Court in its Judgment determined that the \$82,000.00 contract dated January 29, 1951 between plaintiff and defendant was in effect and was changed only by an agreement between plaintiff and defendant on the termination of the services of the architect that the structure would be completed with plaintiff billing defendant, after July 19, 1951, for monthly balance and including the 10% which had previously been withheld under the terms of the contract. Exhibit 13 which is all of the billings and payments discloses that commencing August 1, 1951 and subsequent billings on September 5 and November 1, 1951 were billed upon the basis of complete billing which included the 10% which had been previously withheld under architect's draws.

Thus, under the contention of defendant that as of February 1, 1952 there was a claimed overpayment of \$1973.26 there would be no justification for the plaintiff to have filed a lien claiming \$24,752.91 (Ex. P-9) and therefore, there being no justification for the filing of the lien and as an incident of the judgment it was proper that the lien so filed should be released.

The plaintiff was not placed in any unfair predicament by reason of the Court ordering the release of the lien as he made no objection to that portion of the judgment and allowed the Court to enter the judgment on April 23, 1953.

It seems elemental that if the plaintiff filed an improper lien it would of necessity follow that a judgment sustaining the position of the defendant that the lien was improper and it should be ordered released in the judgment.

POINT III.

THE TRIAL COURT UNLAWFULLY PENALIZED PLAINTIFF FOR THE DEFAULTS OF DEFENDANTS PARRY, BY DENYING PLAINTIFF INTEREST ON SUMS FOUND TO BE DUE AND OWING FROM SAID DEFENDANTS, AND BY ALLOWING SAID DEFENDANTS INTEREST PAID TO THIRD PARTY OBLIGEES AFTER TRIAL.

Argument of appellant that there was an unpaid balance of \$24,752.91 is based upon a cost plus 10% basis contended by the appellant.

Counsel for appellant at page 35 of his brief states:

“The trial Court found by implication that only \$3,803.17 was still due and owing as of the time of trial. Said indebtedness found by the Court to be owing from said defendants at the time of trial was not paid until after trial.”

This position is untenable for the reason, as before stated, that during progress of trial, Exhibit P-14 claimed \$13,735.79 additional as extras, items No. 41 to 60 inclusive. Of said 20 items defendant admitted 9 and denied the balance. Including these items admitted, the Court found defendant chargeable with the sum of \$3,781.50 (items 41 to 60 inclusive in Schedule R. 72-73)

which are items never presented to defendant as extras until time of this trial. These items are then included in the amount of \$92,658.30 found due on contract price plus extras. (R. 74.) Not having been billed for the items 41-60 inclusive until progress of trial, defendant Parry should not be penalized if it was an error of judgment of plaintiff not to pay his sub-contractors for work which they had performed and about which the three lien claimants participated in this trial.

This sum of \$3781.50 was thus discharged as per stipulation (R. 54-55) by Parry paying the three lien claimants during trial the sum of \$4338.47 which created an overpayment by Parry of \$435.30 for which he was given judgment by the Court.

Thus the findings of fact and conclusions of law are substantiated by the aforesaid facts.

Defendant found himself in the position of having demands made upon him by various sub-contractors around October 1, 1951 for payments of accounts which plaintiff had failed to pay, with the result that defendant went to plaintiff's office about October 15, 1951 for the purpose of confirming payments which he had made on account of any balances which might be due to sub-contractors who were making demands upon defendant for payment. As a result of this conference defendant received on the site Exhibit P-8 which was a statement of total costs of the construction and from which statement he had to determine unpaid balances to various sub-contractors where payments were justly due and

plaintiff had not paid, in order to prevent filing of liens of certain sub-contractors. It is interesting to note that the item of the Johnson Building Supply Company on Exhibit P-8 is the sum of \$21,219.20 from which it was determined by defendant Parry that there was a balance due said company of \$926.89 which item was paid by two checks dated January 11, 1952 and January 31, 1952. These payments prevented the filing of a lien by said Johnson Building Supply Company as was likewise the case of payments made to Williams Building Supply, Wilson Tile Company, Ben E. Berger, Ernest E. Hank and Ludlow Plumbing Company between November 8 and November 28, 1951 in an aggregate sum of \$6,010.75. The statement attached to letter of attorney for appellant to defendant (Ex. P-9) discloses that the amount of the same Johnson Building Supply Company was the sum of \$15,162.02 such that the subsequent billing (Ex. P-9) of the same account is \$5,057.18 less than the previous billing of the same account on October 30, 1951 (Ex. P-8).

Exhibit P-9 was the first knowledge that defendant had that this construction was being billed upon a cost plus 10% basis and was over 1½ months after the last work was performed upon the job.

The position taken by the trial Court is most aptly presented by a statement made by the Court at the conclusion of the trial and during argument of counsel (R. 922):

“Here is another thing that is very persuasive in this matter. Mr. Millard’s billing, from his own

billing, ran into November, which was he was proceeding under this contract with extras. Now, that is a very persuasive thing in a dispute like this, where it is left to believe one witness against the other.

You have the accounts of Mr. Anderson and Mr. Millard's billing of these people ran into November, and after they have completed this job, which under the contract showed balances under the contract and for extras. That is just one item that is very persuasive. Then, of course, I will say this, that in these plans and these specifications, these things that are in dispute between you, these points are provided for, and to avoid the provision of those plans and specifications you have got to create a side verbal understanding here, and in the light of the fact that there is a strong dispute between these people that such a thing occurred, and as I say, going back to this, in the light that you have Mr. Millard billing these people up to and after the contract is done, on a contract and extra basis, now Mr. Reimann, if you were in my position you just could not simply say, in the light of that, you would disregard that."

Thus, it seems elemental that all extras due lien claimants having been charged against defendant, he would be entitled to full credit for all payments made lien claimants.

Counsel refers on page 41 of his brief to the percentages of costs charged by lien claimants. The sum of \$42.75 was charged against defendant in the judgment found, thus he again should be entitled to credit for amount paid to lien claimants.

POINT IV.

IT WAS ERROR TO ALLOW THE DEFAULTING DEBTORS ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS, AND ALSO ERROR TO DENY THE PLAINTIFF ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS.

At page 42 of appellant's brief counsel states:

“Even the trial Court found that there was a principal amount of \$3,803.17 still due and owing after allowing every possible credit.”

Counsel for appellant's computation of the amount found due at trial differs from this counsel who computes the figure at \$3,781.50. This figure as stated in the previous point consists of items numbered 41 to 60 (Ex. P-14) which are extras claimed during trial aggregating in all \$13,735.79 of which the Court allowed the aforesaid figure of \$3781.50. None of these items of extras totaling \$3781.50 were ever presented to defendant until the 3rd day of trial of this action.

Appellant's counsel refers to Exhibit P-9 dated December 28, 1951 which defendant Parry testified he received about January 4, 1952 and was the first notice he had ever received that he owed a purported balance of \$24,752.91 by reason of the construction contract being a cost plus 10% contract.

Counsel for appellant gave great latitude of discretion to defendant on this \$24,752.91 claim by filing notice of lien in the office of the County Recorder of Salt Lake County on the claim on January 8, 1952 — four days

after defendant had received counsel's letter with statement attached.

It is true enough that defendant could have paid plaintiff \$24,752.91 as demanded and then have turned around and sued for the determination of credits which plaintiff would not allow, but defendant deemed it not advisable on advice of counsel.

Counsel for appellant seems to forget that this action which he commenced was based upon the foreclosure of a lien on a contract claimed to be on a cost plus 10% basis and that when the trial Court determined appellant's contention was not correct, his suit would fail and the defendant would be entitled to his costs.

POINT V.

PLAINTIFF REDUCED HIS BID TO \$82,000.00 IN RELIANCE ON THE DIRECTIONS OF THE ARCHITECT FOR OMISSION OF CERTAIN ITEMS, AND ALSO ON THE PROMISE OF ARCHITECT SUPERVISION AND NON-INTERFERENCE BY OWNERS, AND ON THE REPRESENTATION THAT ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION WAS BEING AWARDED TO PLAINTIFF, SO THAT PLAINTIFF WAS NOT BOUND WHEN DEFENDANTS DISREGARDED THE CONTRACT AND DEPRIVED THE PLAINTIFF OF A SUBSTANTIAL PORTION OF CONSIDERATION FOR WHICH HE BARGAINED.

The first problem raised under this point is argued by counsel for appellant with utter disregard to the

testimony in this action as to the acquisition of materials on the part of defendant.

The testimony shows that the Pella window units were ordered and plaintiff was so advised at all times and plaintiff had ample knowledge of this fact within the specifications (Ex. P-3) page 19 where the specifications state:

“Windows; shall be Pella units as called for on plans to be installed according to the manufacturer’s direction as a part of the carpentry contract.”

Plaintiff was advised as to the plumbing material which is set out in the specifications (Ex. P-3, page 35).

It is interesting to note that the 4th page of Exhibit P-4 includes figures admitted by Johnson himself to include computations of cost for sewer and water service in the sum of \$5667.00 which is the figure which plaintiff used in his bidding on the job. This exhibit was at all times in the possession of the plaintiff until it became an exhibit in December, 1951 in Case No. 94041 and which this defendant withdrew in order to introduce in this action.

Plaintiff’s witness Johnson who was the architect, admitted upon cross examination that with reference to Exhibit P-4 he had in mind sewer pipe and water pipe to be included in the contract (R. 372, 374). This witness further admitted that the specifications used on this job (Ex. P-3) provided for water service and connecting a sewer system. (R. 357-358). Further, witness admitted

that he never mentioned to defendant the change in thickness of outside walls from 13 inch walls showed in the plans to walls of 9 inch in thickness including plaster, on the top floor. (R. 369). This change was stated by the witness not to be material even though it left the upper floor of the structure without any window sills. Witness further stated that the last two pages of the plans (Ex. P-2) plaintiff's copy, (Ex. P-5) defendants' copy and (Ex. D-38) Salt Lake City Building Engineer's copy were drawn the last part of February, 1952, (R. 386) after the signing of the contract but Exhibit D-38, discloses that the last two sheets which are identical with defendants' copy (Ex. P-5) were part of the plans filed on February 3, 1952 for the purpose of obtaining a building permit. This witness further testified that \$82,000.00 was a just and reasonable fee for the construction of these 11 units (R. 387).

Plaintiff being a general contractor of great experience could very early in the progress of construction have terminated the contract while there was still architectural supervision if the interference of the defendants Parry was causing undue loss of time and overhead. Plaintiff further could have refused to have continued construction about July 19, 1951 when the services of the architect were terminated and the best answer to the problem is incorporated within the physical properties of Exhibit P-13 showing a billing on a contract and extra basis after completion of the work and payments having been made by defendant under those billings.

Defendants Parry visited the site on their way to

work in the morning for about 15 minutes and then returned to the site on their way home from work and after plaintiff's workmen had left the job so that there could not have been a wholesale loss of time due to owner interference.

POINT VI.

EVEN IF THE CONTRACT WERE NOT VOIDABLE, IT COULD NOT BE CONSTRUED TO REQUIRE PLAINTIFF TO FURNISH ITEMS IN EXCESS OF THOSE ON WHICH THE ARCHITECT AS AGENT OF OWNERS INSTRUCTED PLAINTIFF TO BASE HIS BID, AND PLAINTIFF IS THEREFORE ENTITLED TO RECOVER ADDITIONAL SUMS.

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